

NYS PERB Contract Collection – Metadata Header

This contract is provided by the Martin P. Catherwood Library, ILR School, Cornell University. The information provided is for noncommercial educational use only.

Some variations from the original paper document may have occurred during the digitization process, and some appendices or tables may be absent. Subsequent changes, revisions, and corrections may apply to this document.

For more information about the PERB Contract Collection, see http://digitalcommons.ilr.cornell.edu/perbcontracts/

Or contact us:

Catherwood Library, Ives Hall, Cornell University, Ithaca, NY 14853 607-254-5370 ilrref@cornell.edu

Contract Database Metadata Elements

Title: Endicott, Village of and Council 66, AFSCME, AFL-CIO, Local 826 (2007)

Employer Name: Endicott, Village of

Union: Council 66, AFSCME, AFL-CIO

Local: **826**

Effective Date: 06/01/07

Expiration Date: 05/31/12

PERB ID Number: 7572

Unit Size: 33

Number of Pages: 40

For additional research information and assistance, please visit the Research page of the Catherwood website - http://www.ilr.cornell.edu/library/research/

For additional information on the ILR School - http://www.ilr.cornell.edu/

Pagroll

BC \7572

Central Garage Water Parks

AGREEMENT

Parks Street

between

VILLAGE OF ENDICOTT

and

AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO COUNCIL 66



RECEIVED 7 THROUGH MAY 31, 2012
NYS PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT
RELATIONS PORTD

JUN 1 7 2009

ADMINISTRATION

		. ,	

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		PAGE
Adentification of Parties	to AGREEMENT	1
PURPOSE AND INTE	ENT	1
ARTICLE I	RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE II	UNION SECURITY	
Section 1.	Check-off of Union Dues	1
Section 2.	Bulletin Boards	2
Section 3.	Access to Premises	2
Section 4.	Aid to Other Unions	2
ARTICLE III	HOURS OF WORK	
Section 1.	Work Day	2
Section 2.	Regular Hours	2
Section 3.	Work Week	3
Section 4.	Work Schedule	3
Section 5.	Clean-up Time	3
ARTICLE IV	HOLIDAYS	
Section 1.	Holidays Recognized and Observed	3
Section 2.	Holiday Pay	4
Section 3.	Holiday Work	4
Section 4.	Holiday Hours for Overtime Purposes	4
Section 5.	Holiday During Vacation Periods	4
<i>:</i>		
ARTICLE V	VACATION	
Section 1.	Choice of Vacation	4
Section 2.	Work During Vacation Period	4
Section 3.	Advance Payment of Vacation Time	4
Section 4	Vacation Rights in Case of Layoff or Separation	5
Section 5.	Vacation Schedule	5
Section 6.	Definition	5
Section 7.	Approval	5
Section 8.	Vacation Entitlement Days	5
Section 9.	Full Month Credit	6
Section 10.	Vacation Upon Separation from Service	6
Section 11.	Vacation - Paid Holiday	6
Section 12.	Vacation Carry-Over	6
ARTICLE VI	SICK LEAVE	
Section 1.	Allowance	6
Section 2.	Accumulation of Sick Time	7
Section 3.	Limitation of Sick Leave with Pay	7
Section 4.	Sick Leave with pay because of Exposure to Contagion	7
Section 5.	Work Related Illness or Injury	7
Section 6.	Certification of Illness	7
Section 7.	Notification of Illness	8
Section 8.	Sick Leave Compensation Upon Retirement from Service	8
Section 9.	Sick Leave Bank	8
Section 10.	New York State Disability	9

ARTICLE VII	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	
Section 1.	Eligibility Requirements	9
Section 2.	Application for Leaves	9
Section 3.	Union Leave	9
ARTICLE VIII	PAID LEAVES	
Section 1.	Bereavement Leave	10
Section 2.	Jury Duty	10
Section 3.	Military Service Leave	10
Section 4.	Educational Training	10
Section 5.	Personal Leave	10
ARTICLE IX	HOSPITALIZATION AND MEDICAL BENEFITS	
Section 1.	Health Insurance Coverage	10
Section 2.	Health Insurance Buy-out	11
50011011 21	and and an	• •
ARTICLE X	RETIREMENT PLAN	12
ARTICLE XI	OVERTIME	
Section 1.	Show-up Time	12
Section 2.	Call Time	12
Section 3.	Premium Rates of Pay	12
= -		
Section 4.	Distribution of Overtime	13
Section 5.	Work at Employees Option	13
Section 6.	Continuous Call-Out	13
ARTICLE XII	COMPENSATORY TIME APPLICABLE TO WATER PLANT	
\$	OPERATIONS ONLY	13
ARTICLE XIII	SENIORITY	
Section 1.	Definition	1.2
Section 2.		13
••	Probation Period - Seniority Purposes	14
Section 3.	Temporary Employees	14
Section 4.	Breaks in Continuous Service	14
Section 5.	Seniority Lists	14
ARTICLE XIV	WORK FORCE CHANGES	
Section 1.	Layoff	14
Section 2.	Recall	14
Section 3.	Temporary Job Openings	15
Section 4.	Promotion	15
Section 5.	Demotions	15
Section 6.	Transfer	15
Section 7.	Out-of-Title Work	16
A DOMECTE DE SANT		
ARTICLE XV	DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE	
Section 1.	Discipline	16
Section 2.	Discharge	16
ARTICLE XVI	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES	
Section 1.	Grievances	17
Section 2.	Arbitration Procedure	17
Section 3.	Grievance Committee	18
Section 4.	Processing Grievances During Working Hours	18
7		
٦		

Section 5.	Safety Committee	18
Section 6.	Labor Management Forum	18
ection 7.	Safety Enforcement	19
ARTICLE XVII	STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS	
Section 1.	Strikes	19
Section 2.	Lockouts	19
ARTICLE XVIII	CONTRACTING AND SUB-CONTRACTING OF	
	PUBLIC WORK	19
ARTICLE XIX	GENERAL PROVISIONS	
Section 1.	Pledge Against Discrimination and Coercion	19
Section 2.	Union Activities on Employers Time and Premises	20
Section 3.	Contract Negotiations	20
Section 4.	Uniforms and Protective Clothing	20
Section 5.	Employee Automobile	20
Section 6.	Disabled Employees	20
Section 7.	Personnel Practices	21
Section 8.	Flushing Time	21
Section 9.	Performance Evaluation	21
Section 10.	Commercial Drivers License	21
Section 11.	Volunteer Fire Service	21
Section 12.	Death Benefit	21
Section 13.	Longevity	21
Section 14.	Drug Testing	22
ARTICLE XX	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	22
ARTICLE XXI	DURATION OF AGREEMENT	22
ARTICLE XXII	WAGE INCREASES	
Section 1.	Wage Schedules	22
Section 2.	Stand-by	23
ARTICLE XXIII	TOTAL AGREEMENT	23
APPENDIX "A"	WAGES	24
APPENDIX "R"	VACATION	2.4

This is an AGREEMENT entered into by and between the Village of Endicott, New York, hereinafter referred to as the Employer and Local 826 of the American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, and AFSCME Council 66 hereinafter referred to as the Union, under Article 14 of the Public Employees Fair Employment Act of the State of New York.

PURPOSE AND INTENT

The general purpose of this AGREEMENT is to set forth terms and conditions of employment, and to promote orderly and peaceful labor relations for the mutual interest of the Employer, the Employees and the Union. The parties recognize that the interest of the community and the job security of the employees depend upon the Employer's success in establishing a proper service to the community. To these ends, the Employer and the Union encourage to the fullest degree, friendly and cooperative relations between the respective representatives at all levels and among all employees.

IT IS UNDERSTOOD BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES THAT ANY PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT REQUIRING LEGISLATIVE ACTION TO PERMIT ITS IMPLEMENTATION BY AMENDMENT OF LAW OR BY PROVIDING THE ADDITIONAL FUNDS THEREFORE, SHALL NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL THE APPROPRIATE LEGISLATIVE BODY HAS GIVEN APPROVAL.

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the purpose of establishing salaries/wages, hours and other conditions of employment for the term of this AGREEMENT for all employees of the Employer in the Departments of Water, Streets, Parks, Maintenance Workers at the Golf Course and Designated Mechanics at the Centralized Garage. Bargaining unit members shall not include clerical, supervisory, seasonal and temporary employees.

ARTICLE II UNION SECURITY

SECTION 1. CHECK-OFF OF UNION DUES

- a. All employees covered by this Agreement who are members of the Union shall tender their membership dues to the Union by signing the authorization for payroll deduction of Union Dues provided by the Union subject to the terms and conditions thereon.
- b. The Employer agrees to deduct Union membership dues in accordance with the amount certified by the Union to the employer and to maintain such dues deductions in accordance with the terms and conditions of the form of authorization for payroll deduction of union dues form provided by the Union from the pay of all employees who have executed such authorization for payroll deduction of Union dues.
- c. Payroll deduction of Union dues under the properly executed Authorization for Payroll Deduction of Union Dues forms shall become effective at the time the form is signed by the employee and shall be deducted by the next full pay period and each pay period thereafter from the pay of the employee.

- d. The aggregate total of all such deductions shall be remitted each month to the designated financial officer of the Union together with a list from whom dues have been deducted on or before the tenth (10th) of every such month.
- e. Any change in the amount of Union Dues to be deducted must be certified by the Union in writing and be forwarded to the Employer.

SECTION 2. BULLETIN BOARDS

a. The Employer agrees to provide a 3' x 4' bulletin board for the exclusive use of the Union to post notices and other Union information at each work installation. It is understood that the posting of items of a political or controversial nature which may embarrass or demean the Employer shall be prohibited.

SECTION 3. ACCESS TO PREMISES

The Employer agrees to permit representatives of the International Union, the Union Council and the Local Union to enter the premises of the Employer to discuss working conditions with employees, investigate grievances and conduct safety inspections in accordance with the terms and conditions herein. It is understood that such access shall not unduly interfere with the work performance of employees and shall only be done with prior notice by the Union and approval of the Employer.

SECTION 4. AID TO OTHER UNIONS

The Employer agrees there will be no aid, promotion or financing of any other labor group or organization concerning bargaining unit employees covered by this Agreement which purports to engage in collective bargaining on the part of the Employer or those designated as his representatives or subordinate staff for any purpose, and that the payroll deduction of dues for any such other organization shall not be permitted within this bargaining unit.

ARTICLE III HOURS OF WORK

SECTION 1. WORK DAY

The regularly scheduled workday will be Monday thru Friday as follows:

Parks - 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.

Golf Course - 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.
Street Department - 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.
Water Department (Service) - 7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.

Water Department (Pump Station) - four 10 hour days - 40 hours per week -

7 days a week operation Centralized Garage - 7:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m,

Current and past practices and flexibility to accommodate the special needs of the departments shall continue.

SECTION 2. REGULAR HOURS

a. The regular hours of work each day shall be consecutive. References to consecutive hours of work in the balance of this Article shall be construed to be exclusive of lunch periods.

b. Lunch periods shall be 30 minutes in length. Employees shall punch out and in for lunch periods.

SECTION 3. WORK WEEK - FOR O.T. PURPOSES

The work week is from 12:01 Sunday through 12:00 midnight Saturday.

SECTION 4. WORK SCHEDULE

- a. Work schedules showing the employee's shifts, workdays and hours shall be given to stewards for posting per stewards written request.
- b. Pumping station employees may have their work schedules and shift schedules rotated among the employees in the department.
- c. All employees work schedules shall provide for a fifteen (15) minute rest period during each one-half shift.

SECTION 5. CLEAN-UP TIME

Employees shall be granted ten (10) minutes for personal clean-up prior to the lunch period and ten (10) minutes prior to the end of the work day.

ARTICLE IV HOLIDAYS

SECTION 1. HOLIDAYS RECOGNIZED AND OBSERVED

a. The following days shall be recognized as paid holidays and shall be observed in accordance with the official Village calendar:

NEW YEAR'S DAY
PRESIDENTS' DAY
GOOD FRIDAY
MEMORIAL DAY
INDEPENDENCE DAY
LABOR DAY

COLUMBUS DAY
VETERAN'S DAY
THANKSGIVING DAY
DAY AFTER THANKSGIVING
DAY BEFORE CHRISTMAS
CHRISTMAS DAY HOLIDAY

- b. The Day After Thanksgiving shall be a floating holiday which the employee may elect to take on another day at the employee's option.
- c. Should it be necessary to limit the number of employees who may desire to take a floating holiday at a given date, seniority shall prevail in the choice of such day. (Senior employee first choice).
- d. If Day Before Christmas falls on a Saturday, then Refuse Workers shall work the preceding Friday (holiday) at double time rate paid in addition to their regular day's pay.
- e. Regular shift workers will receive the day off with pay. Workers in operations requiring twenty four (24) hour coverage, all year, will be eligible for the twelve (12) holidays as described in this article. If a holiday is observed on an employee's scheduled day off or during his vacation, he shall be given a lieu day for that day.

SECTION 2. HOLIDAY PAY

Eligible employees who perform no work on a holiday shall be paid one (1) day's pay for each of the holidays listed on which they perform no work.

SECTION 3. HOLIDAY WORK

If an employee works on any of the holidays listed, he shall be paid in addition to his regular rate of pay for that day double time for all hours worked.

SECTION 4. HOLIDAY HOURS FOR OVERTIME PURPOSES

For the purpose of computing overtime, all holiday hours for which an employee is compensated, shall be regarded as hours worked.

SECTION 5. HOLIDAY DURING VACATION PERIODS

If a holiday occurs during the calendar week in which a vacation is taken by an employee, the holiday will not be counted as a vacation day. The employee will receive the paid holiday as if he were actively working.

If an employee works on Presidents' Day or Columbus Day, such employee shall have the choice between being paid one (1) day's pay at his/her regular rate of pay and double time for all hours worked or being paid double time for all hours worked and receiving a lieu day. Employees may carry accrued lieu days over to the following year for a period of six (6) months.

ARTICLE V VACATIONS

SECTION 1. CHOICE OF VACATION

a. Vacation shall be granted at the time requested by the employee. If the nature of the work makes it necessary to limit the number of employees on vacation at the same time, the employee with the greater seniority shall be given his choice of vacation period in the event of any conflict over vacation period. It is understood that the employer when necessary can limit to one (1) the number of employees in a department on vacation at any one time.

SECTION 2. WORK DURING VACATION PERIOD

No employees shall be required to work during his vacation period except for a legally declared civil emergency.

SECTION 3. ADVANCE PAYMENT OF VACATION TIME

An employee with five (5) years service with the employer shall be allowed when thirty (30) days notice is given, to be paid in advance of time taken for vacation periods of two weeks or more.

SECTION 4. VACATION RIGHTS IN CASE OF LAYOFF OR SEPARATION

- a. Any employee who is laid off, retired or separated from the service of the Employer for any reason, except discharge with cause, prior to taking his vacation, shall be compensated in cash for the unused vacation he has accumulated at the time of separation.
 - b. In the case of the death of such an employee, such payment shall be made to his estate.

SECTION 5. VACATION SCHEDULE

All members who are employed shall receive vacation benefits as described below:

Full time employees will be eligible for paid vacation time.

SECTION 6. DEFINITION

A vacation day is computed on the basis of the number of hours the employee works on a regular daily basis during THE WORK YEAR.

SECTION 7. APPROVAL

- a. Vacations must be approved in advance by the immediate supervisor. A request must be made in writing at least two (2) weeks prior to the beginning of a vacation period of four days or more.
- b. The supervisor shall respond in writing to the request no later than five (5) working days after its receipt. If no response is given, the request will be deemed to be granted.
- c. Requests for one (1) through four (4) days of vacation may be made at any time, but may be denied by the immediate supervisor if the department's work load requires an employee's presence. These requests will be made as follows:

Employees will make every effort to request 1-4 days of vacation at least one day before the intended vacation day(s) during the normal work hours. In the event that emergencies arise during non work hours prior to 6:30 a.m. of the vacation day, and vacation time has not been requested, the employee(s) will telephone their department and make the request for vacation time on a telephone answering device.

In situations where the supervisor requires the employee's attendance for work, the supervisor will contact the employee(s) with the information that the vacation request is not granted. If the employee(s) is not contacted by 7:00 a.m. of the vacation day, the request will be deemed granted.

The supervisor or his designee and a steward assigned by the Union will turn on the answering machine at the end of each work day and verify its operation.

SECTION 8. VACATION ENTITLEMENT DAYS

Two (2) weeks [ten (10) work days] after completion of one (1) work year through and including four (4) work years of employment.

Three (3) weeks [fifteen (15) work days] after completion of five (5) work years through and including nine (9) work years of employment.

- Four (4) weeks [twenty (20) work days] after completion of ten (10) work years through and including twenty-nine (29) work years of employment.
- Five (5) weeks [twenty-five (25) work days] after completion of twenty (20) work years and over of employment. (Note effective January 1, 2002)
- Six (6) weeks [thirty (30) work days] after completion of thirty (30) work years and over of employment. (Effective June 1, 2005)

Vacation will be delegated on January 1, of each year. Vacation must be used by December 31, of each year. Members entitled to an extra week of vacation as of the commencement of their 6th, 11th or 31st year will be entitled to this vacation on January 1 of that year.

SECTION 9. FULL MONTH CREDIT

Full month credit (1/12) will be allowed only if the employee works one-half of the workdays in the month, plus one day of the available actual workdays of the first or last month (entrance/separation) whichever applies.

SECTION 10. VACATION UPON SEPARATION FROM SERVICE

Paid vacation days will be due upon termination on the basis of 1/12 of the allotted days (10) or (20) times month(s) worked during the last calendar year of employment. Other vacation time due upon termination will be that which was accrued from the previous year, but not taken from January to date of separation. In the case of death of such an employee, such payment shall be made to his estate.

SECTION 11. VACATION - PAID HOLIDAY

A paid holiday which falls during a vacation period will not count as a vacation day. The day will count as a paid holiday.

SECTION 12. VACATION CARRY-OVER

Vacation time is to be used by December 31st unless special permission has been granted by the employee's supervisor. Special requests for carry-over of vacation time will be considered on an individual basis. Extenuating circumstances will be taken into consideration. Carry-over vacation needs to be taken by May 31st of the following year.

ARTICLE VI SICK LEAVE

SECTION 1. ALLOWANCE

All employees covered by this Agreement shall be granted sick leave with pay up to one (1) working day a month or twelve (12) working days in any calendar year on account of personal sickness... personal physical disability; exposure to contagion or visits by reason of making medical visits which cannot be scheduled during non-working hours. Such sick leave with pay shall be granted by the Department Head.

SECTION 2. ACCUMULATION OF SICK TIME

The twelve (12) working days per calendar year allowed such employee for such sick leave with pay, if not taken or used in any calendar year, the amount or number of days not so taken or used shall be accumulated from year to year and used, if needed, up to a total of one hundred and fifty (150) working days for those employees hired prior to August 1, 1981 and up to a total of one hundred and sixty-five (165) working days for those employees hired on or after August 1, 1981. Such accumulation will include all accumulated time from original date of hire.

SECTION 3. LIMITATION OF SICK LEAVE WITH PAY

All employees who have accumulated sick leave with pay, as hereinbefore provided, by virtue of employment or service with the Village of Endicott shall, during such sickness or disability, be granted sick leave with pay to the extent of the unused sick leave time which he has accumulated, but no sick leave with pay shall be granted to any such person in excess of one hundred and fifty (150) working days except as otherwise specified in this Agreement.

SECTION 4. SICK LEAVE WITH PAY BECAUSE OF EXPOSURE TO CONTAGION

Any employee isolated or quarantined because of exposure to a communicable disease, other than in the line of duty, shall for the purpose of these regulations be considered absent because of sickness and shall be granted sick leave with pay during such isolation or quarantine to the extent of his or her accumulated and unused sick leave time.

SECTION 5. WORK RELATED ILLNESS OR INJURY

- a. Employees who are off due to injury and are eligible to receive Worker's Compensation Benefits shall be paid under one of the following methods at the employee's option:
- I. The employee shall receive his or her standard Worker's Compensation benefits directly from the Worker's Compensation carrier; or
- II. The employee shall receive his or her standard salary in the form of sick time and/or vacation time. The employee may elect one time to switch to Option I. In the event the accrued time has been entirely depleted the employee is automatically switched to Option I. During the time that the employee is paid under Option II, the employer shall receive the Worker's Compensation checks.
- b. If, at some later date, medical attention becomes necessary, the employee's supervisor and the Human Resource Director must be notified.
- c. When seeking medical aid, the injured employee should inform the hospital/doctor that it is a work-related injury and that the bill should be forwarded to the Village compensation carrier. The name of the carrier can be obtained by telephoning the Human Resources Department.
- d. When the Village receives reimbursement under the provisions of the Workman's Compensation Law, the appropriate sick leave and/or vacation shall be reimbursed to the employee.

SECTION 6. CERTIFICATION OF ILLNESS

The Department Head may require a physicians certificate for any absence exceeding three (3) days, where the illness or disability is a long duration, a physician's certificate will be required for each thirty (30) days of continuous absence. An employee shall, however, be allowed to return to work when they furnish to the Employer a physician's certificate.

SECTION 7. NOTIFICATION OF ILLNESS

In order to qualify for sick leave with pay, an employee shall report such illness or disability as promptly as possible and not later than the time that such person is required to report for duty.

SECTION 8. SICK LEAVE COMPENSATION UPON RETIREMENT FROM SERVICE

An employee leaving the service of the Village for any reason whatsoever shall be entitled to receive, within thirty (30) days after the termination of such employment, his full salary for the number of working days credited to such employee for such leave time with pay. In case of death of such employee, such payment shall be made to his estate. This section applies only to employees hired prior to August 1, 1981, and is not available by anyone hired after this date. Employees hired on or after August 1, 1981 shall in accordance with Section 41(j) of the New York State Career Retirement Law, be permitted to apply up to one hundred and sixty-five (165) days of accumulated unused sick leave toward retirement service credit.

SECTION 9. SICK LEAVE BANK

A sick leave bank will be established subject to the following:

- a. A committee of five (5) will be called when a written request for sick time is made to the superintendent and Union president. The committee will be called into being by the Union president within two weeks of request.
- b. The committee will consist of the superintendent (1): one (1) representative named by the Union: one (1) representative named by the Mayor: two (2) representatives mutually agreed to by the Mayor and the Union president.
- c. The committee will act on requests which reflect major sick time loss and will be guided by past history of sick time use.
- d. Sick time over that which has been earned will be granted only upon a vote of three (3) or more ayes. Any vote of less than three (3) ayes will result in rejection.
 - e. The vote will be by secret ballot.
- f. The committee's action will be final and not subject to explanation, grievance procedure or arbitration. There will be no provision for appeal.
- g. In cases when a member has used all sick time due to serious illness of reasonably long duration the committee may grant additional paid sick time provided there is a pay back provision. The time will be given by the Village and a record kept by the superintendent. The recipient will be required to pay back time on a schedule established by the committee.
- h. All records will be kept by the superintendent, with a semi-annual accounting made to the union upon request of the Union president.
- i. Copies of each transaction will be presented to all committee members and filed in the superintendent's office.

- j. Substitutes for committee members may be made by the mayor in situations whereby a regular committee member cannot perform due to illness or absence.
- k. The Village of Endicott and AFSCME Local 826 agree to meet and discuss alternative forms to the current sick leave bank. This shall be accomplished through the Labor Management Forum.

SECTION 10. NEW YORK STATE DISABILITY

The Village shall provide New York State Disability Insurance for all employees in the bargaining unit. Employees will be required to contribute the maximum amount allowed by law, through payroll deduction, for this benefit.

ARTICLE VII LEAVES OF ABSENCE

SECTION 1. ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

An employee may, in the discretion of the Village Board, be granted a leave of absence (LOA) without pay or benefits after six (6) months of service with the Village. Such leave shall not be considered an interruption of continuous service, but in no event will the time on LOA count toward benefit accumulation. Such leave of absence shall not exceed twelve (12) months without further approval of the Village Board.

SECTION 2. APPLICATION FOR LEAVES

- a. Any request for a leave of absence shall be submitted in writing by the employee to his immediate supervisor. The request shall state the reason the leave of absence is being requested and the length of time off the employee desires.
- b. Authorization for a leave of absence shall be furnished as promptly as possible to the employee by the Mayor or the Human Resource Director and it shall be in writing.
- c. The Village of Endicott recognizes the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, which provides up to 12 weeks of unpaid leave in a 12 month period for qualifying employees. The FMLA allows employers to require employees to use their paid leave off as part or all of the 12 weeks of leave time. The reasons a person may qualify for leave under the FMLA are:
 - 1. To care for the employee's newborn baby
 - 2. Because of the adoption or foster care placement of a child with the employee
 - 3. To care for the employee's spouse, child or parent who has a serious health condition
 - 4. Because of the employee's own serious health condition

SECTION 3. UNION LEAVE

Members of the Union who are elected or designated to attend any function of AFSCME or other affiliated body, shall be granted time off without pay to attend such functions provided ten (10) days advance notice is given to the Employer. Such leave shall be restricted to two employees at one time and shall not exceed five (5) work days per employee per year. In no case shall more than ten (10) work days per year be granted for all such elected or designated members combined. This leave may be denied or canceled in the event of a declared civil emergency.

ARTICLE VIII PAID LEAVES

SECTION 1. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

In the event of death in the family of an employee, spouse, parents, children, sister, brother, grandparent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, step-children, step-mother, step-father, grandchildren, domestic partner, the employee shall be granted three (3) days leave of absence with full pay to make household adjustments or to attend funeral services.

SECTION 2. JURY DUTY

Employees required to serve on jury duty shall receive their regular wages for those days. Employees must provide documentation for time served in a timely manner. If the employee is paid for jury duty by the Court, the employee must reimburse that amount to the Village.

SECTION 3. MILITARY SERVICE LEAVE

Any employee who is a member of a Reserve Force of the United States or of this State and who is ordered by the appropriate authorities to attend a training program or perform other duties under the supervision of the United States or this State shall be granted a leave of absence during the period of such activity. Said employee shall be paid for a leave of absence up to 30 days or 22 working days, whichever is greater, in any one calendar year and not to exceed 30 days or 22 working days, whichever is greater, in any one continuous period of such absence, as required by New York State Law.

SECTION 4. EDUCATIONAL TRAINING

If an employee is required by the Village or other state authority to take job related educational training, the Village will provide the appropriate time off with pay.

SECTION 5. PERSONAL LEAVE

Employees covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to two personal leave days each calendar year which shall be non-cumulative. Effective June 1, 2005 employees covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to three personal leave days each calendar year which shall be non-cumulative.

ARTICLE IX HOSPITALIZATION AND MEDICAL BENEFITS

SECTION 1. HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE

a. The Employer also agrees that this Village funded coverage shall continue in effect and shall apply only to active full-time employees and eligible dependents. Bargaining unit members shall be entitled to a \$10.00/\$20.00 co-pay prescription card. This \$10.00/\$20.00 co-pay prescription card requires the bargaining unit member to pay \$10.00 for the cost of generic drug prescriptions and \$20.00 for the cost of non-generic prescription drugs. Effective June 1, 2008 bargaining unit members shall be entitled to a \$10.00/\$20.00/\$30.00 co-pay prescription card. This \$10.00/\$20.00/\$30.00 co-pay prescription card requires the bargaining unit member to pay \$10.00 for the cost of generic drug prescriptions, \$20.00 for the cost of non-generic prescription drugs and \$30.00 for the cost of non-generic brand prescription drugs when generic drugs are available. Effective June 1, 2011

bargaining unit members shall be entitled to a \$15.00/\$25.00/\$35.00 co-pay prescription card.

- b. Each bargaining unit member shall contribute eleven percent (11%) of the premium cost of hospitalization and medical insurance sponsored by the Village for either the Individual Plan or Family Plan. Effective June 1, 2008 each bargaining unit member shall contribute twelve percent (12%) of the premium cost of hospitalization and medical insurance sponsored by the Village for either the Individual Plan or Family Plan. Effective June 1, 2009 each bargaining unit member shall contribute thirteen percent (13%) of the premium cost of hospitalization and medical insurance sponsored by the Village for either the Individual Plan or Family Plan. Effective June 1, 2010 each bargaining unit member shall contribute fourteen percent (14%) of the premium cost of hospitalization and medical insurance sponsored by the Village for either the Individual Plan or Family Plan. Effective June 1, 2011 each bargaining unit member shall contribute fifteen percent (15%) of the premium cost of hospitalization and medical insurance sponsored by the Village for either the Individual Plan or Family Plan.
- c. Each covered employee who works twenty (20) or more hours a week will be considered full-time employees.
 - d. Employees on unpaid leaves after one (1) year must pay all premium costs while on leave.
- e. The parties agree that this bargaining unit will appoint two (2) unit members to a health care coalition committee administered by the Village. This committee shall study and recommend changes in coverage to AFSCME and other bargaining units to accomplish the purpose of reducing future cost escalations. Any changes in health insurance coverage may not occur without agreement by the unit.
- f. Employees retiring during the term of this agreement shall contribute as retirees toward the Health Insurance premium cost for individual or family / dependent coverage in an amount equivalent to the percentage contribution rate that is in effect up to and including the contribution rate that will be in effect at the expiration of the contract under which they retire.

SECTION 2. HEALTH INSURANCE BUY-OUT

The Village shall pay for each active employee who elects not to participate in the Village of Endicott Family Health Insurance Plan a fixed sum of money, or prorated portion thereof, providing the employee can document access to other comparable paid coverage through an alternative employer or organization membership if the employee voluntarily waives his/her right to Village paid medical insurance.

For each year of the contract the Village will pay the employee the maximum amount equal to 75% of the annual premium of the individual rate the Village pays on behalf of an eligible employee to be adjusted as of September 30th of each year. Effective June 1, 2008 the Village will pay the employee three thousand dollars (\$3,000.00). Effective June 1, 2009 the Village will pay the employee one thousand five hundred dollars (\$1,500.00). Effective June 1, 2010 the health insurance buy-out shall be eliminated.

The employee who elects this alternative instead of participating in the Health Insurance Plan shall inform the Village in writing by the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding the month they intend to begin participating in the program.

An employee who elects this alternative to the Health Insurance Plan shall receive a sum of money, or part thereof, quarterly on the second pay period of the month, as follows:

October, November, December January, February, March April, May, June July, August, September

- paid retroactively in January
- paid retroactively in April
- paid retroactively in July
- paid retroactively in October

An employee who later elects to participate in the Health Insurance Plan due to the loss of alternative coverage will be activated the day he/she signs up for the Health Insurance Plan. An employee who later elects to participate in the Health Insurance Plan, who has not lost alternative coverage, may do so during Blue Cross/Blue Shield open enrollment periods of April and October.

ARTICLE X RETIREMENT PLAN

The Employer shall provide for each eligible employee coverage under 75(i) of the N.Y.S. Improved Retirement Plan at no cost to the employee pursuant to the Retirement Systems regulations. The Employer shall pay the employer share of coverage under the N.Y.S. Retirement for those employees covered by Article 14 of the N.Y.S. Retirement System (Tier 3 members) and for those employees covered by Article 15 of the N.Y.S. Retirement System (Tier 4).

ARTICLE XI OVERTIME

SECTION 1. SHOW-UP TIME

- a. Any employee who is scheduled to report for work and who presents himself for work as scheduled shall be assigned work on the job.
- b. If work on the job is not available and the employee is excused from duty, he shall be paid at his regular rate for two (2) hours work. If the employee works above two (2) hours, then he shall be paid for four (4) hours or the actual hours worked, whichever is greater.

SECTION 2. CALL-TIME

Any employee called for emergency duty in addition to or outside of his regular scheduled shift shall be paid for a minimum of three (3) hours at the rate of time and one-half (1-1/2) for each call-out and a minimum of three (3) hours at the rate of double time on holidays for each call out. Time worked beyond the three hours shall be at time and one-half (1-1/2) except holidays which shall be at double time.

SECTION 3. PREMIUM RATES OF PAY

Time and one-half (1-1/2) the employee's regular hourly rate of pay shall be paid for all work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in any work day, all work performed in excess of forty (40) hours in any work week and all work performed before or after any scheduled work shifts. However, employees shall be paid a premium rate of double their regular rate of pay for all work performed on holidays. In lieu of overtime pay and where the parties agree, compensatory time may be accumulated at the rate of time and one-half (1-1/2) for all hours worked to a maximum of forty-eight (48) hours worked (seventy-two [72] hours at time and one-half) per calendar year. In no case shall an employee use more than eight (8) hours of compensatory time (ten [10] for pump station employees) per week and in no case shall the taking of compensatory time precipitate the necessity of the use of overtime in the

department. In the event an employee elects to be paid for compensatory time such payment of earned compensatory time shall be in the next payroll period from the request to be paid out.

SECTION 4. DISTRIBUTION OF OVERTIME

Overtime work shall be distributed equally to employees working within the same job classification within a department or unit sub-division. The equalization of distribution of overtime shall be accomplished by mutual agreement between the Foreman and the Union Steward with an up-to-date list posted in each department.

SECTION 5. WORK AT EMPLOYEE'S OPTION

Overtime work shall be voluntary. There shall be no discrimination against any employee who declines to work overtime, except for legally declared Civil Emergency.

SECTION 6. CONTINUOUS CALL-OUT

In the event of an emergency call-out an employee who works overtime continuously from prior to 12:00 midnight until his regular shift starts, he shall be entitled to leave at 12:00 noon of his regular work shift and be paid for the entire shift.

ARTICLE XII COMPENSATORY TIME APPLICABLE TO WATER PLANT OPERATIONS ONLY

The parties to the Agreement between the Village of Endicott and AFSCME Local 826, Council 66, AFL-CIO agree that compensatory time off in lieu of overtime will be provided for Water Plant Operators according to the following:

- a. In lieu of overtime pay and at the employee's option, compensatory time may be accumulated at the rate of time and one-half (1-1/2) for all hours worked to a maximum of forty (40) hours worked (sixty [60] hours at time and one-half). Employees requesting to take accrued compensatory time off shall be permitted to use it if the time off does not unduly disrupt the operations of the Village. A minimum of twenty-four (24) hours notice shall be required for employees requesting compensatory time off.
- b. Compensatory time off cannot be attached to accrued Vacation and/or Holiday time off without written authorization of the department head.
- c. Cash in by the employee and cash out by the employer shall be consistent with the terms of the Fair Labor Standards Act.

ARTICLE XIII SENIORITY

SECTION 1. DEFINITION

Seniority shall be defined as the length of service in any position covered by this Agreement. Employees, however, shall be credited with years of service since date of hire for benefit purposes.

SECTION 2. PROBATION PERIOD - SENIORITY PURPOSES

All new employees hired shall be considered as probationary employees for the first one (1) year of their employment. When an employee completes his probationary period, he shall be entered on the seniority list. There shall be no seniority among probationary employees. New employees shall be paid one dollar (\$1.00) less per hour than the lowest rate denoted in the Appendix within their job classification. At the end of the probationary period, the employee shall be paid the lowest rate denoted in the Appendix for each respective year within their job classification. However, new employees hired in the laborer classification shall have an initial rate of \$10.26 per hour. Those new employees in the labor classification shall not be subject to an increase upon completion of their probationary period. The labor classification initial rate shall, however, be subject to negotiated wage increases as referenced in Article XXII. Furthermore, upon completion of two years of service in the labor classification employees shall increase to pay level median of the current initial rate and the maximum Laborer rate.

SECTION 3. TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES

Employees hired to fill a temporary job opening which later becomes permanent or who are transferred to another permanent position, shall accrue seniority retroactive to their original date of hire.

SECTION 4. BREAKS IN CONTINUOUS SERVICE

An employee's continuous service record shall be broken by voluntary resignation, discharge for just cause and retirement.

SECTION 5. SENIORITY LISTS

A seniority list of all bargaining unit members shall be furnished by the Village every six (6) months if requested by the Union President.

ARTICLE XIV WORK FORCE CHANGES

SECTION 1. LAYOFF

If the employer decides to layoff employees for any reason, the employer shall meet with the Union to review such anticipated layoff at least fourteen (14) days prior to the date notification is given to the employee. When such action takes place, it shall be accomplished by laying off temporary and newly hired probationary employees first. Should the employer decide to further reduce the work force, then regular employees shall be laid off in the inverse order of seniority, subject only to the Civil Service Law of New York State.

SECTION 2. RECALL

- a. When the working force in the bargaining unit is increased after a layoff, employees will be recalled in the reverse order to that in which they were laid off. Notice of recall shall be sent to the employee at his last known address by registered mail. If any employee fails to report to work within ten (10) work days from the mailing of notice of recall, he shall be considered a quit. Recall rights for an employee shall expire one (1) year from the date of layoff or a period equal to his seniority, whichever is greater. Written notice of expiration of recall rights shall be sent to the employee at his last known address by registered mail or certified mail.
 - b. No new employee shall be hired in the bargaining unit until all employees on layoff status desiring

to return to work have been recalled.

SECTION 3. TEMPORARY JOB OPENINGS

- a. Temporary job openings are defined as vacancies that may periodically develop in any classification because of illness, vacation or leave of absence.
- b. Temporary job openings filled by the employee on assignment or reassignment shall be made in terms of a promotion based on seniority and qualification before a new employee is hired. Temporary job assignments shall be considered as training assignments by which an employee may obtain experience that will allow him to qualify for future promotions.
- c. Employees assigned to temporary job openings in a classification shall be paid the minimum wage rate for that classification or their own rate, whichever is higher.
- d. If an employee has been assigned to fill a temporary job opening five times in a calendar year and work in the opening is still needed, the employer and Union representative shall meet to discuss whether the opening shall be posted and filled, with the employer reserving the right to make the final decision.
- e. Not withstanding anything stated in Article XIV, Section 3, the employer reserves the right to reassign employees to any job or duty performed within their classification.

SECTION 4. PROMOTION

- a. The term promotion shall mean the advancement of an employee from a lesser paying position to a higher paying position within the bargaining unit. When an opportunity for promotion exists, the Employer shall post the vacancy together with the salary range of such position for a period of no less than 5 days in all regular work locations within the bargaining unit. In making any appointment which constitutes a promotion, the Employer shall designate, from among those employees who have applied in writing, the most senior employee who meets the qualifications.
- b. The promoted employee will be on probation for three (3) months. If the employee fails to provide satisfactory service during any part of the three (3) month time, he will revert back to his former position.

SECTION 5. DEMOTIONS

The term demotion shall mean the assignment of an employee from a higher paying position to lower paying position within the bargaining unit. Demotions shall be accomplished only for the purpose of avoiding layoffs. Should demotions become necessary, they shall be accomplished in inverse order of seniority. An employee being demoted shall have the choice, to be indicated in writing, of whether to accept the demotion or layoff. No demotion shall become effective without the effected employee having received ten (10) days advance notice in writing.

SECTION 6. TRANSFERS

The term transfer shall mean the voluntary assignment or reassignment of an employee to an equal or lower paying position for which he is qualified. Any vacant position within the bargaining unit shall be posted at all regular work locations for a period of not less than five (5) days. Any employee who qualifies for a transfer may request in writing within the above period, that he be assigned or reassigned to the position. When two or more qualified employees request a transfer to a vacant position, the Employer shall honor the request of the most senior qualified employee.

SECTION 7. OUT-OF-TITLE WORK

Out-of-title work may be done for five (5) consecutive days. After working out of title for more than five (5) consecutive days, the pay for the out-of-title work shall be retroactive to day one. For purposes of guiding the supervisor in determining out-of-title work, a list of civil service job descriptions may be found in Appendix "A". This is for illustrative purposes to be used only for this section. These descriptions are non-grievable.

ARTICLE XV DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

SECTION 1. DISCIPLINE

a. Disciplinary action or measures shall include only the following:

ORAL REPRIMAND
WRITTEN REPRIMAND
SUSPENSION (Notice to be given in writing)

While the disciplinary actions set forth herein are intended to be progressive, it is understood that the seriousness of the circumstances in a particular instance may require deviation from these steps.

- b. Disciplinary action may be imposed upon an employee only for failing to fulfill his responsibilities as an employee. When any action or measure is imposed or is pending against an employee, then the Employer shall notify the employee and the Union in writing of the charges immediately or prior to the disciplinary action to be taken. The Union may process the matter as a grievance through the regular grievance procedures, including arbitration step, if deemed necessary, except that any hearing provided by Section 75 of the Civil Service Law shall be processed through the arbitration procedure of the Agreement.
- c. If the Employer has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that will not embarrass the employee before other employees or the public.
- d. In the event that an employee receives a documented oral reprimand or written reprimand and two (2) years elapse without any other disciplinary action being imposed on the employee, such reprimand shall be expunged from the employee's personnel file.

SECTION 2. DISCHARGE

- a. The Employer shall not discharge any employee without just cause. Just cause includes, but is not limited to, the following actions while on duty: drinking alcoholic beverages or working under the influence of alcoholic beverages; using illegal drugs or working under the influence of illegal drugs; stealing. If in any case, the Employer feels there is just cause for discharge, the employee and his steward will be notified in writing in the manner set forth in Section 1 Subsection (b) of this Article, that the employee has been suspended and is subject to discharge. The Umon may process the disciplinary action as a grievance.
- b. The Union shall have the right to take up the suspension and/or discharge as a grievance matter at Step III (Article XVI, Section 1, c), through the arbitration step, if deemed necessary by either party, except where an employee is subject to the Section 75 of the Civil Service Law. In such cases, any hearing provided for shall be accomplished through the arbitration procedure and all such hearings shall be conducted in private, with no public release made until the final determination is made.

c. Any employee found to be unjustly suspended or discharged, or his penalty reduced, shall be reinstated with full compensation for all lost time and with full restoration of all other rights and conditions of employment. If the Arbitrator finds just cause, they shall have the right to set or modify any penalty given.

ARTICLE XVI GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

SECTION 1. GRIEVANCES

- a. A "grievance" is an alleged violation of the expressed written words found within this agreement.
- b. An "aggrieved party" is any covered employee who believed he/she has been injured by misinterpretation of the words in this Agreement. In the event that more than one employee is affected, a class action grievance may be filed by the Union.
 - c. A grievance shall initially be processed as follows:
 - STEP I. The Union Steward with the employee shall take up the grievance with the employee's immediate supervisor within ten (10) work days of its occurrence: [if at any time the steward is unaware of the grievance, he shall take it up within ten (10) work days of his knowledge of its occurrence.] The supervisor shall then attempt to adjust the matter and shall respond to the steward within ten (10) work days.
 - STEP II. If the grievance has not been settled, it shall be presented in writing by the Union steward to the Department Head within five (5) work days after the supervisor's response is due. The Department Head or his designee shall respond to the Union Steward in writing within ten (10) work days.
 - STEP III. If the grievance still remains unadjusted, it shall be presented by the Union Steward and/or his representative to the Mayor or his designee in writing within five (5) work days after the response of the Department Head is due. The Mayor or his/her designee shall schedule and hold a meeting within fifteen (15) work days after receipt of the grievance with the Council 66 Area Representative, Union President or Vice-President and grievant. The Mayor or designee shall, within seven (7) work days of such meeting, set forth his answer in writing with a copy to the local Union President.
 - STEP IV. If the grievance is still unsettled, either party may, within thirty (30) days after the reply of the Mayor or designee is due, by written notice to the other, request arbitration.

SECTION 2. ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

- a. The arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the New York State Public Employment Relations Board (PERB).
- b. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties, and the arbitrator shall be requested to issue his/her decision within thirty (30) days after the close of the hearing.
- c. It is understood and agreed that no arbitration panel functioning under this step of the grievance procedure shall have any power to amend, modify or delete any provisions of this Agreement or have the power to

set rates of pay or other terms and conditions of employment as a result of any impasse in negotiations that may occur, except as may be voluntarily agreed upon in writing by both the Employer and the Union.

d. Expenses for the arbitration panel's services and the proceedings shall be borne equally by the Employer and the Union. However, such party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives and witnesses. If either party desires a verbatim record of the proceedings, it may cause such a record to be made, providing it pays for the record and makes copies available without charge to the other party and to the arbitrator.

SECTION 3. GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

Any grievance committee meetings with the Employer held during working hours shall be without loss of time or pay.

SECTION 4. PROCESSING GRIEVANCES DURING WORKING HOURS

Grievance committee members may investigate and process grievances during working hours without loss of pay. Prior notification must be given to the committee member's supervisor.

SECTION 5. SAFETY COMMITTEE

The Union will have representation on the Village Safety Committee which consists of representatives from all Village Departments. The Committee is responsible for:

- 1. Conducting regular safety meetings to discuss general safety issues and concerns. The meetings will be held during regular work hours. Attendance at these meetings will not result in any loss of pay.
- 2. Coordinating and monitoring safety training for Village employees.
- 3. Reviewing accident/injury reports and making recommendations for possible preventative measures.
- 4. Making inspections to detect unsafe physical conditions or work practices.
- 5. Making recommendations in regard to protective equipment or devices.
- 6. Promoting safety for employees and making the safety program known to all employees.
- 7. Monitoring all Village Departments to assure they are in compliance with PESH requirements in regard to safety policies, procedures, training, protective equipment, etc.

SECTION 6. LABOR MANAGEMENT FORUM

Conferences shall be held between representatives of the Employer and at least three (3) representatives of the Union on important matters, which may include the discussion of procedures for avoiding future grievances and other methods of improving the relationship between the parties upon request of either party. Arrangements for such meetings shall be made in advance and shall be held at reasonable hours as mutually agreed upon by the parties. Employees acting on behalf of the Union shall suffer no loss of time or pay should such meetings fall within their regular work hours. An agenda shall be furnished by the Union 48 hours prior to the meeting.

SECTION 7. SAFETY ENFORCEMENT

No employee shall be required to perform work that endangers his/her or any other employee's health or physical safety or under conditions which are in violation of the health and safety rules, or any local, state or federal health or safety laws. An employee's refusal to perform such work shall not warrant or justify any present or future disciplinary action.

ARTICLE XVII STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

SECTION 1. STRIKES

It is recognized that continued and uninterrupted operation of the Village departments and agencies is of paramount importance to the citizens of the community and there should be no interference with such operation. The parties hereto agree that there will not be and that the Union, its officers, members, agents or principals will not engage in, encourage or sanction strikes, slowdowns, walkouts, mass resignations, mass absenteeism or other similar actions which would involve suspension of, or interference with normal work performance. The Village shall have the right to discipline or discharge any officer encouraging, formulating or participating in a strike, slowdown or other such interference.

SECTION 2. LOCKOUTS

The Employer agrees that there shall be no lockout of employees during the term of this Agreement, nor will any employees covered by this Agreement be required to act as strike breakers.

ARTICLE XVIII CONTRACTING AND SUB-CONTRACTING PUBLIC WORK

During the term of this Agreement, the Employer shall notify the Union thirty (30) days in advance of the decision by the Employer to contract or sub-contract any public work normally performed by employees covered by this Agreement that would mean their displacement. Notwithstanding the above, the final decision for such action shall be at the discretion of the Employer and in accordance with the law.

ARTICLE XIX GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 1. PLEDGE AGAINST DISCRIMINATION AND COERCION

- a. The provisions of this Agreement shall be applied equally to all employees in the bargaining unit without discrimination as to age, sex, marital status, race, color, creed, national origin or political affiliation. The Union shall share equally with the Employer the responsibility for applying this provision of the Agreement.
- b. All references to employees in this Agreement designate both sexes and wherever the male gender is used it shall be construed to include male and female employees.
- c. The Employer agrees not to interfere with the rights of employees to become members of the Union, and there will be no discrimination, interference, restraint or coercion by the Employer or any Employer

representative against any employee because of Union membership or because of any employee activity in an official capacity on behalf of the Union or for any other reason.

d. The Union recognizes its responsibility as bargaining agent and agrees to represent all employees in the bargaining unit without discrimination, interference, restraint or coercion.

SECTION 2. UNION ACTIVITIES ON EMPLOYER'S TIME AND PREMISES

The Employer agrees that during working hours, on the Employer's premises and without loss of pay and with prior notification to a supervisor or the Human Resource Director, one steward from each department (parks, water, street, golf course, centralized garage) be allowed to:

- post Union notices;
- distribute Union literature;
- solicit Union membership during other employee's non- working time;
- transmit communications, authorized by the Local Union or its officers to the Employer or his representatives;
- consult with the Employer, his representatives, Local Union officers or other Union representatives concerning the enforcement of any provisions of the Agreement.

SECTION 3. CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS

The Employer will give release time with pay for one (1) Local Union member from each department to participate in contract negotiations if such time falls during regular work hours.

SECTION 4. UNIFORMS AND PROTECTIVE CLOTHING

- a. Three (3) uniforms, rainwear, when necessary, and one (1) jacket, the type and cost of which shall be determined by mutual agreement between the Department Head and the Union, shall be furnished to the employees by the Employer, the cost of which shall be paid by the Employer. The authority for such purchase shall rest with the Employer. All employees in the bargaining unit shall receive for the purchase of steel toe safety shoes, that meet OSHA standards, an annual footwear allowance of one hundred and twenty-five dollars (\$125.00) upon presentation of receipt of payment by voucher.
- b. ALL clothing and apparel issued to employees shall not be for personal use, but for job-related activity. Replacement shall be on a fair wear and tear basis, with an employee required to produce any worn out item before replacement is made.
- c. Gloves for employees will be supplied. Replacement of gloves will be on a condition that the old gloves are turned in prior to receiving a new pair. Lost or misplaced gloves will not be replaced at Village expense.

SECTION 5. EMPLOYEE AUTOMOBILE

No employee shall be obligated to use their personal automobile on Village business.

SECTION 6. DISABLED EMPLOYEES

The Employer shall make every effort to place employees who become partially disabled on their present jobs, on work which they are able to perform as determined by the Village. Medical recommendation will be

required.

SECTION 7. PERSONNEL PRACTICES

- a. ALL titles contained herein are used for classification and wage rate determination only. ALL current and applicable Civil Service Laws with regard to classification shall apply to all employees covered by this Agreement.
- b. The Village has the right to assign necessary job assignments without pre-scheduling, providing that the employee is physically capable of performing such assigned duties.

SECTION 8. FLUSHING TIME

The Village will continue the practice of paying six (6) hours time for work commonly referred to as "flushing time" per present practice (two hours actual work time).

SECTION 9. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Village and AFSCME agreed to the implementation of a formal evaluation system for employees. The evaluation procedure has been mutually agreed upon by the parties during discussions on 5/29/98.

SECTION 10. COMMERCIAL DRIVERS LICENSE

The Employer shall reimburse employees fifty percent (50%) of the cost of the renewal of a commercial driver's license.

SECTION 11. VOLUNTEER FIRE SERVICE

Any employee in the Volunteer Fire Service who is on active fire duty at the start of his/her shift shall be allowed such time off to be deducted from vacation leave, floating days, or personal leave if he/she so desires, provided proof of such working fire is submitted if requested by the employer.

SECTION 12. DEATH BENEFIT

Unused accumulated sick leave, personal leave, overtime, compensatory time, vacation, holiday time and floating holidays shall be paid over to the employee's surviving spouse or estate within 30 days after termination of employment because of death.

SECTION 13. LONGEVITY

Employees shall receive longevity service pay as follows:

After ten (10) years of service After twenty (20) years of service After thirty (30) years of service One hundred dollars (\$100) per year Two hundred dollars (\$200) per year Three hundred dollars (\$300) per year

Longevity shall be payable the first payroll after anniversary date of hire. Longevity payments will not be part of employee base wages.

SECTION 14. DRUG TESTING

Effective January 1, 1996 employees in a job classification requiring a CDL are subject to the Village Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy.

ARTICLE XX MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

It is recognized that management of Village Government, control of its properties and the maintenance of order and efficiency are solely responsibilities of the Village. Accordingly, the Village retains the rights, including but not limited to, to select and direct the working forces, including the right to hire, suspend or discharge for cause, assign, promote or transfer, to determine the amount of overtime to be worked, decide the number and locale of its facilities, stations, etc., maintenance and repair, amount of supervision to be utilized, schedules of work, together with the selection, procurement, designing, engineering and control of equipment and material; purchase services of others, contract or otherwise, except as they may be otherwise specifically limited in this Agreement and to make reasonable and binding rules which shall not be inconsistent with this Agreement. The exercise of these rights shall not be grievable.

ARTICLE XXI DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This agreement shall be effective as of June 1, 2007 and remain in full force and effect until the 31st day of May, 2012.

ARTICLE XXII WAGE INCREASES

SECTION 1. WAGE SCHEDULES

All employees covered by this Agreement shall be compensated in accordance with the hourly wage rates set forth in Appendix "A" of this Agreement.

Effective June 1, 2007 increase all classifications by 3.5%.

Effective June 1, 2008 increase all classifications by 3.5%.

Effective June 1, 2009 increase all classifications by 3.5%.

Effective June 1, 2010 increase all classifications by 3.5%.

Effective June 1, 2011 increase all classifications by 3.5%.

Effective June 1, 2007 increase the Heavy Mechanic hourly wage rate in effect as of May 31, 2007 by \$.26 prior to the 3.5% hourly wage increase effectuated on June 1, 2007.

Effective June 1, 2007 all employees in the classification of MEO Medium and MEO Heavy shall be moved to the MEO Heavy classification with an hourly wage rate of \$18.62 prior to the 3.5% hourly wage increase effectuated on June 1, 2007.

SECTION 2. STAND-BY

a. It is agreed that one (1) employee of the department will be available for call-in for a period of one (1) week Friday P.M. through Friday A.M. The stand-by employees shall receive fifteen (15) hours regular pay for the stand-by assignment. In addition he shall be compensated at the rate of time and one-half (1-1/2) for actual time worked, and double time for actual time worked on holidays, with a minimum of two (2) hours for each call-in.

ARTICLE XXIII TOTAL AGREEMENT

. · · · · · ·		
The foregoing constitutes the entire Agreement be amendments, except an amendment mutually agreed upon designated as an amendment to this Agreement shall superso		
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have of MARCH, 2008.	ve set forth their hands and seals this day	
FOR THE VILLAGE OF ENDICOTT, NEW YORK:		
D R Benton	3/12/08	(
VILLAGE OF ENDICOTT, LOCAL 826, AMERICAN FEREMPLOYEES, AFL-CIO:	DERATION, OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIP	'AL
President, Local 826	3 /12/ 08 Date	
AFSCME Council of	3 12 08 Date	

	APPENDIX "A"			. / / a
	<u> 2007 - 2011</u>			6/1/09
		2007	2008	2009
EMPLOYEES:	CLASSIFICATION:	3.5 %	3.5%	3.5%
Bruce Barton	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Michael Battaglini	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
James Bopp	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Craig English	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
John Hartman	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Alana Heath	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Robert Kaczynski	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Mark Kessler	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Joseph Konsuit	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Brett Manchester	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Leroy Minus	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Brian Moore	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Bruce Picciano	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Peter Pizzuti	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Joseph Sementelli	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Jerry Skrivan	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Lawrence Ward Jr.	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Joseph Welch	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
John Wido	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
Kenneth Young	MEO Heavy	19.27	19.94	20.64
~ William Corlini	,		10.26	10.62
➤Barry Aten	Laborer	10.31	10.67/13.86	14.35 - 14.14
Matthew Battaglini	Laborer	10.31	10.67	(11.04/)
U Chris osburn	0 4 1 107			14.34 10.89
→ Brian Burns	Laborer MEO Heavy Laborer WTP Operation	10.62/13.46	13.93	14.42 18.55
→ Michael Cronk	Laborer MEO Heavy	16.51	17.09	17.69 20,64
→ Kevin Pero	Laborer WTP Operation	10.62/13.46	13.93(1.93)	14.42
Michael Vostisch			10,26	10.62
Eugene Arthur	Water Treatment Plant Operator	18.29	18.93	19.59
Paul Dunlap	Water Treatment Plant Operator	18.29	18.93	19.59
Jeremy Hartman	Water Treatment Plant Operator	18.29	18.93	19.59
Michael Fedor	Mechanic	18.83	19.49	20.17
Peter Vojtisek	Mechanic	18.83	19.49	20.17 ietiles
Michael Homanich	Heavy Mechanic	19.48	20.16	20.87
Frank Sherman	Heavy Mechanic	19.48	20.16	20.87
Ernie Tuetken	Heavy Mechanic	19.48	20.16	20.87

APPENDIX "A" 2007 - 2011

		2010	2011
EMPLOYEES:	CLASSIFICATION:	3.5 %	3.5%
Bruce Barton	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Michael Battaglini	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
James Bopp	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Craig English	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
John Hartman	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Alana Heath	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Robert Kaczynski	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Mark Kessler	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Joseph Konsuit	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Brett Manchester	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Leroy Minus	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Brian Moore	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Bruce Picciano	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Peter Pizzuti	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Joseph Sementelli	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Jerry Skrivan	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Lawrence Ward Jr.	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Joseph Welch	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
John Wido	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
Kenneth Young	MEO Heavy	21.36	22.11
	•		
Barry Aten	Laborer	14.85	15.37
Matthew Battaglini	Laborer	14.84	15.36
Brian Burns	Laborer	14.92	15.44
Michael Cronk	Laborer	18.31	18.95
Kevin Pero	Laborer	14.92	15.44
Eugene Arthur	Water Treatment Plant Operator	20.28	20.99
Paul Dunlap	Water Treatment Plant Operator	20.28	20.99
Jeremy Hartman	Water Treatment Plant Operator	20.28	20.99
•			
Michael Fedor	Mechanic	20.88	21.61
Peter Vojtisek	Mechanic	20.88	21.61
,			
Michael Homanich	Heavy Mechanic	21.60	22.36
Frank Sherman	Heavy Mechanic	21.60	22.36
Ernie Tuetken	Heavy Mechanic	21.60	22.36
	·		

CLASSIFICATIONS IN BARGAINING UNIT

CLASSIFICATION

Mechanics

Mechanic, Assistant

MEO Heavy

MEO Medium

MEO Light

Laborer

Water Treatment Plant Operator

#609

Adopted: 7/30/76 CJ Revised: 11/9/88

HEAVY MECHANIC

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF THE CLASS:

This is a highly skilled work responsible for efficient and accurate performance of a variety of automotive and heavy equipment repair including diesel engines, and heavy duty snow removal equipment. A working knowledge of machinist tasks associated with the mechanic trade is required. General instructions are received from the Assistant Automotive Mechanic Foreman regarding tasks to be performed, permitting considerable leeway for planning the details of each assignment. Immediate supervision may be exercised over the work of the Assistant Heavy Mechanic, Apprentice Motor Equipment Mechanic and Mechanic Helpers. Does related work as required.

TYPICAL WORK ACTIVITIES:

Performs skilled operations in making a broad range of repairs on motor equipment including automobiles, trucks, tractors, sweepers, lawn mowers, power saws, graders, bulldozers, paving machines, and snow loader;

Performs skilled mechanical repairs and maintenance on diesel engines and peripheral accessories;

Grinds valves and fits new bearings, pistons and rings;

Installs connecting rods and bearings;

Repairs or overhauls brake systems, differentials, transmissions, front and rear axles;

Straightens frames and fenders and aligns wheels;

Operates machine shop equipment, including lathes and such other machining equipment used in the department; Performs state inspection on County owned vehicles;

FULL PERFORMANCE KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, ABILITIES AND PERSONAL CHARACTERISTICS:

Through knowledge of standard automotive repair methods, terminology and tools of the trade; working knowledge of the machinist trade; ability to make difficult repairs to automotive and other mechanical equipment such as overhauls of hydraulic systems, engines, and transmissions; ability to work from plans, specifications and rough sketches and oral instructions; ability to lay out work; good coordination, manual dexterity; physical condition commensurate with the demands of the position.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

Two years of full time experience doing heavy equipment mechanical repairs associated with an established mechanical repair business responsible for the repair of automotive and heavy equipment, including diesel engines and heavy duty snow removal equipment.

NOTES:

Possession of a valid NYS Chauffeur's License, Class III at time of appointment.

Possession of a NYS Inspection License at time of appointment.

When required by employer, must furnish own hand tools and box.

#251

Adopted: 11/9/88 CJ

ASSISTANT HEAVY MECHANIC

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF THE CLASS:

The work involves assisting the Heavy Mechanic in the repair of automotive equipment and heavy equipment machines including diesel engines. Direct supervision is received from the Heavy Mechanic, with some repairs being performed independently. The incumbent also performs tasks requiring a working knowledge of the machinist trade. This position differs from that of Apprentice Motor Equipment Mechanic in that the Assistant Heavy Mechanic receives concentrated training in the repair of heavy motor equipment. Does related work as required.

TYPICAL WORK ACTIVITIES:

Receives training in the repair and maintenance of diesel engines and peripheral accessories;

Completes moderately difficult repairs on motor equipment such as automobiles, trucks, tractors, sweepers, lawnmowers, power saws, and other equipment.

Assists in grinding valves and fitting new bearings, pistons and rings;

Assists in installing connecting rods and bearings;

Assists in repairs of overhauls of brake systems, differentials, transmissions, front and rear axles;

Participates in state inspections on County owned vehicles;

Assists in straightening of frames and fenders and aligning wheels;

Operates machine shop equipment including lathes, welders, grinders, power saws;

Operates fuel and lubrication truck for field maintenance and does repair work in the field.

FULL PERFORMANCE, KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, ABILITIES AND PERSONAL CHARACTERISTICS:

Good knowledge of standard automotive repair methods, terminology and tools of the trade; working knowledge of the machinist trade; ability to work from plans, specifications and rough sketches and oral instructions; good coordination; mechanic aptitude; manual dexterity; physical condition commensurate with the demands of the position.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

Two years as an Apprentice Motor Equipment Mechanic.

NOTE:

Possession of a valid New York State Chauffeur's license, Class III.

#200

Revised: 2/28/91 ks

MOTOR EQUIPMENT OPERATOR (HEAVY)

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF THE CLASS:

Employees in this class perform recurring manual duties in connection with the operation of heavy duty road maintenance equipment. Operation of this type of equipment entails a great amount of responsibility for the safety of other workers. Employees receive specific instructions from a supervisor but are responsible for the safe and economical operation of their equipment on assigned tasks. Periodic inspections are made of work in progress. Does related work as required.

TYPICAL WORK ACTIVITIES:

Operates heavy equipment classified as heavy, such as a grader, bulldozer, roller, snow loader, paving machine or other type of motor equipment;

Transports heavy equipment to construction jobs;

Lays black top on roads with a paving machine;

Cleans ditches, levels dirt, spreads stones, and removes snow and ice from roads with a grader;

Cuts trees, weeds, and brush in connection with highway maintenance;

Sets guard rail posts;

Sands highways and plows snow;

Performs routine maintenance on motor equipment;

Performs a variety of minor painting and carpentry work and manual tasks.

FULL PERFORMANCE KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, ABILITIES AND PERSONAL CHARACTERISTICS:

Thorough knowledge of the operation of heavy duty motor equipment; ability to make simple repairs to equipment; ability to understand and follow simple oral and written directions; mechanical aptitude; industry; dependability; physical condition commensurate with the demands of the position.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

Graduation from high school or possession of an equivalence diploma and two years of experience in the operation of motor equipment, of which one year must have been in the operation of heavy duty equipment such as crane, back hoe, bulldozer or related equipment;

SPECIAL REQUIREMENT:

Possession of an appropriate drivers license is necessary at the time of appointment.

#604

Revised: 3/20/91 ks

MOTOR EQUIPMENT OPERATOR (MEDIUM)

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF THE CLASS:

The work involves performing duties in connection with the operation of medium weight construction trucks and maintenance equipment; operates snowplows and sanders in the snow and ice control operation; receives specific instructions from a supervisor but is responsible for the safe and efficient operation of their equipment; is expected to have enough knowledge of their equipment to be able to ascertain when the equipment is not operating properly. Does related work as required.

TYPICAL WORK ACTIVITIES:

Operates medium motor equipment (such as vehicles mounted with snow removal plows, tractor with rotary motors, and high pressure street flusher) in connection with construction, highway maintenance, and snow removal activities; Performs routine upkeep maintenance (check fluids and lights) on assigned equipment;

Cuts trees, weeds and bushes, does manual road patching and traffic flagging in connection with highway maintenance;

Sets guard rails and posts;

Performs a variety of minor highway painting, carpentry work and manual tasks.

FULL PERFORMANCE KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, ABILITIES AND PERSONAL CHARACTERISTICS:

Good knowledge of the operation of construction and snow removal equipment and ;other medium motor equipment; ability to understand and follow oral and written instructions; mechanical aptitude; dependability; physical condition commensurate with the demands of the position.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

Graduation from high school or possession of an equivalency diploma and one year of experience in the operation of light road maintenance equipment.

NOTE:

Possession of an appropriate driver's license is necessary at time of appointment.

#500

Revised: 2/28/91 ks

MOTOR EQUIPMENT OPERATOR (LIGHT)

<u>DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF THE CLASS</u>: Employees in this class perform duties in connection with the operation of light construction and maintenance equipment. They receive specific instructions from a supervisor but are responsible for the safe and efficient operation and upkeep of their equipment. Does related work as required.

TYPICAL WORK ACTIVITIES

Operates light motor equipment such as 2-1/2 yard dump truck and small patch roller in connection with construction, maintenance;

Operates equipment and participates in snow removal activities such as sanding roads, acting as "wingperson", shoveling, etc.;

Cuts trees, weeds and bushes, does manual road patching and traffic flagging in conjunction with highway maintenance.

FULL PERFORMANCE KNOWLEDGE, SKILL ABILITIES AND PERSONAL CHARACTERISTICS:

Good knowledge of the operation of trucks and other light motor equipment; ability to understand and follow simple oral and written directions; physical condition commensurate with the demands of the position.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: Graduation from high school or possession of an equivalency diploma and one year experience in the operation of motor equipment.

NOTE:

Possession of an appropriate driver's license is necessary at time of appointment.

#197

Revised: 11/29/74

LABORER

GENERAL STATEMENT OF DUTIES:

Performs routine manual tasks; does related work as required.

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF THE CLASS:

This is routine manual work requiring no previous training and experience but requiring physical endurance and a willingness to perform arduous tasks. Employees in this class receive direct supervision from a superior who is designated as having responsibility for overseeing the performance of the assigned tasks.

EXAMPLES OF WORK: (Illustrative Only)

Works with crews in the repair and maintenance of bridges, roads, sidewalks, curbs and other facilities;

Does manual labor using picks, shovels, brooms, mops, brushes, and other hand tools;

Picks up litter, papers and refuse, and disposes of same as directed;

Cleans catch basins, ditches, and culverts; digs holes; sets up posts; and lays pipe;

Digs up streets in the location of water leaks and assists in the laying of water pipes, culverts, underdrains, pipes and hoses;

Loads and unloads materials and equipment from trucks;

Clears snow and spreads sand and salt;

Plants, fertilizes and mulches vegetation, mows grass;

Erects street barricades and signs; places lamp on barricades;

Performs other cleaning and minor repairs and maintenance to fences, gates, signs, buildings and equipment.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES:

Willingness to perform routine manual work; ability to lift heavy weights; ability and willingness to follow verbal or written instructions; physical endurance; good physical condition.

ACCEPTABLE TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

None required, but some experience as a laborer in heavy manual work is desirable.

#179 May 12, 1952

PUMPING PLANT OPERATOR

GENERAL STATEMENT OF DUTIES:

Has charge of the operation of the pumping plant during an assigned shift; does related work as required.

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF THE CLASS:

This is work involving responsibility for routine operation of the Pumping Plant, but operator may call his superior when unusual occurrences arise; supervision is exercised over this employee by Superintendent; work consists of test and treatment of water for public consumption by the use of chlorine.

EXAMPLES OF WORK: (Illustrative only)

Makes periodic inspection of pumping machinery to see that it is functioning properly;

Services and makes minor repairs to pumping equipment;

Lubricates and cleans pumps and other machinery;

Operates and regulates plant machinery, electric driven;

Keeps records of plant operation; also log of water pumped and all other pumping plant activities during an assigned (shift:

Operates chlorine machines and makes minor repairs to them;

Answers telephone calls from consumers, makes record of action taken and reports of matters requiring attention later:

Performs custodial duties at plant such as firing of boilers for heat.

REQUIRED KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES:

Good knowledge of the operation and maintenance of water pumping machinery; ability to make minor repairs to pumping plant equipment; some knowledge of hydraulics, pumps, electric motors, and sanitary aspects of a public water supply; general knowledge of the system and other aspects of the water works sufficient to intelligently handle phone and emergency calls from consumers; ability to act quickly in any emergency with considerable mechanical resourcefulness; mechanical aptitude; ingenuity; reliability; good physical condition.

ACCEPTABLE EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING:

One year of experience in the operation and maintenance of water pumping equipment, and completion of a standard grade school course; or, any equivalent combination of training and experience sufficient to indicate ability to do the work.

<u>SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCEPTANCE OF APPLICATIONS:</u>

Eligibility for a Grade III Public Water Treatment and Purification Plant Operator's Certificate issued by the State of New York.

APPENDIX "B"

AFSCME

VACATION

YEAR ONE	YEAR TWO	YEAR THREE
JAN. JUNE DEC.	JAN. JUNE DEC.	JAN. JUNE DEC.
	EARN 10 DAYS - (80 HOURS) FROM JAN. 1 - DEC. 31>	
ENTER: JUNE 1 EARN 6/12 x 10 = 60/12 = 5 days 5 days x 8 =		
40 hours>	ELIGIBLE FOR 40 HOURS OF EARNED VACATION TIME DURING YEAR TWO	
	COMPUTATION AT SEPARATION LAST YEAR OF EMPLOYMENT	
BEGIN YEAR WITH EARNED		
VACATION FROM PRIOR YEAR	JAN. JUNE DEC. LEAVE AUG. 1	
NOT USE	D EARNED VACATION FROM PRIOR	YEAR = 10 DAYS = 80 HOURS
		1021110 001100100

EARNED VACATION FOR LAST YEAR OF EMPLOYMENT: (AUGUST - 7th MONTH) $7/12 \times 10 = 70/12 = 5.83$ days x 8 hours = 46.64 hours 46.64 rounded up = $\frac{47.00}{127.00}$ hours

AMOUNT DUE UPON SEPARATION = 127 HOURS IN THIS EXAMPLE